
 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

JULY 16, 2019 - 7:00 P.M. 

(810) 629-8631 

 

CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – 7:00 P.M. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

PUBLIC HEARING – The purpose of the public hearing is to review and hear 

objections to the Laurel Springs Waste Removal Project Special Assessment 

District. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA  

Regular Board Meeting Minutes – July 2, 2019 

Treasurer's Report 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. 2019-2020 Budget Amendment. 

2. Resolution (3) to approve the project details and direct the preparation of the 

special assessment roll for the Laurel Springs Waste Removal Project. 

3. Resolution (4) to acknowledge the filing of the special assessment roll, 

schedule a public hearing, and direct the issuance of statutory notices for the 

Laurel Springs Waste Removal Project. 

4. Zoning Ordinance Amendment- to include a definition and clarify submerged 

land beneath lakes. 

5. Zoning Ordinance Amendment-to opt out, therefore prohibit, recreational 

marijuana establishments/facilities. 

6. Zoning Ordinance Amendment-to allow for utility scale solar energy facilities. 

7. Request to adopt the resolution acknowledging the 5-year review and 

ratification of the 2012 Master Plan. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

Supervisor Mike Cunningham             Clerk Marcella Husted 

 

Please note: The Public Remarks section appears twice on the agenda - once after 

Communications and once before Adjournment.  Anyone wishing to address the Township 

Board may do so at these times. The Tyrone Township Board of Trustees has established a 

policy limiting the time a person may address the Township Board at a regular or at a special 

meeting during the Public Remarks section of the agenda to three minutes. The Board reserves 

the right to place an issue under the New Business section of the agenda if additional discussion 

is warranted or to respond later either verbally or in writing through an appropriately appointed 

Township Official. - Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 

contact the Tyrone Township Clerk at (810) 629-8631 at least seven days prior to the meeting. 



CONSENT AGENDA 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Supervisor Cunningham called the meeting of the Tyrone Township Board to order with the 

Pledge of Allegiance on July 2, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone Township Hall. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Supervisor Mike Cunningham, Treasurer Jennifer Eden, Clerk Marcella Husted, 

Trustees David Walker, Chuck Schultz, Al Pool and Soren Pedersen. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – OR CHANGES 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the agenda as presented.  (Trustee Pool seconded.)  The 

motion carried; all ayes.  

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

 Regular Board Meeting Minutes – June 18, 2019 

Clerk’s Warrants and Bills 

 

Trustee Walker moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  (Trustee Schultz seconded.)  

The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS 

1.  Livingston County Sheriff Report- May 2019 

2.   Fire Service Report 

 

Trustee Walker moved to receive and place on file Communications 1-2 as presented.  (Trustee 

Pool seconded.)  The motion carried 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

None. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution confirming pledge of the Township's full faith and credit for the 

Laurel Springs and Irish Hills Road Improvement Projects. 

 

RESOLUTION #190701 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Road Improvement Project (2019) 

and 

Irish Hills Subdivision Road Improvement Project (2019) 



 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 – PAGE 2 

 

 

Resolution Confirming Pledge of the Township’s Full Faith and Credit 

 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has taken the necessary actions under Act No. 188, Public 

Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended (“Act 188”) to proceed with road improvements for the 

Tyrone Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Road Improvement Project (2019) Special 

Assessment District and the Tyrone Township Irish Hills Subdivision Road Improvement Project 

(2019) Special Assessment District; 

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2019 the Township Board adopted a Bond Authorizing Resolution 

providing for the issuance of bonds for the Laurel Springs Subdivision Road Improvement 

Project;  

 

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2019 the Township Board adopted a Bond Authorizing Resolution 

providing for the issuance of bonds for the Irish Hills Subdivision Road Improvement Project;  

 

WHEREAS, both of the Bond Authorizing Resolutions referenced in the two proceeding 

paragraphs (the “Bond Authorizing Resolutions”) provide for the pledge of the Township’s full 

faith and credit as additional security for such bonds; 

 

WHEREAS, the Township Board wishes to confirm the pledge of its full faith and credit. 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That: 

1. Notice of this Meeting.  The Township Clerk has posted the notice attached as Exhibit A 

of this meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Township. 

 

2. Confirmation of Pledge of Full Faith and Credit.  Each Bond Authorizing Resolution 

contains the following paragraph: 

 

The Bonds are being issued in anticipation of the collection of future due installments of the 

Assessments.  The Assessments and interest and investment income thereon are projected to be 

sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due and such funds are pledged 

as security for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  Additionally, the 

Township hereby irrevocably pledges its limited tax full faith and credit as additional security for 

the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  Pursuant to such pledge, should 

Assessment collections be insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when 

due, the Township shall pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as a first budget obligation 

from its general funds, including the collection of any ad valorem taxes which the Township is 

authorized to levy, but any such levy shall be subject to applicable constitutional, charter and 

statutory tax rate limitations. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 – PAGE 3 

 

 

The Township Board hereby confirms the pledge of the Township’s full faith and credit as 

described above for each of the Bond Authorizing Resolutions. 

 

RESOLVED BY: Trustee Walker 

SUPPORTED BY:  Trustee Schultz 

 

VOTE: Pool, yes; Walker, yes; Pedersen, yes; Cunningham, yes; Schultz, yes; Eden, yes; 

Husted, yes. 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  July 2, 2019 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on July 2, 2019, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

                                                                         

Exhibit A 

Form of Notice 

                                                                         

 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF TYRONE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGARDING THE PLEDGE OF THE TOWNSHIP’S FULL FAITH AND CREDIT 

 

On July 2, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Township Offices, 10408 Center Road, Fenton, Michigan 

48430, the Township Board will consider a resolution entitled “Resolution Confirming Pledge of 

the Township’s Full Faith and Credit” regarding the Tyrone Township Laurel Springs 

Subdivision Road Improvement Project (2019) Special Assessment District and the Tyrone 

Township Irish Hills Subdivision Road Improvement Project (2019) Special Assessment District. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 – PAGE 4 

 

2. Resignation of Trustee Al Pool. 

 

RESOLUTION #190702 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

RESIGNATION OF TRUSTEE ALLEN POOL 

 

Trustee Walker resolved to accept the resignation of Allen Pool as Township Trustee effective 

July 2, 2019. (Trustee Pedersen seconded).  The motion carried; all ayes. 

 

VOTE: Cunningham, yes; Eden, yes; Pedersen, yes; Schultz, yes; Walker, yes; Husted, yes; 

Pool, yes. 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  July 2, 2019 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on July 2, 2019, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

 

3. Selection of contractor for the 8420 Runyan Lake Rd. building renovation. 

 

Trustee Walker moved to accept the bid of $198,000 from contractor Sorensen Gross for the 

renovation of the 8420 Runyan Lake Rd. building.  (Trustee Schultz seconded.)  The motion 

carried; all ayes. 

 

4. Selection of the contractor for the 8420 Runyan Lake Rd. parking lot. 
 

Trustee Walker moved to accept the bid of $239,106.55 from contractor Allied Construction for 

the parking lot improvements to the 8420 Runyan Lake Rd. property.  (Treasurer Eden 

seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes. 



 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APPROVED MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 – PAGE 5 

 

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

None. 

 

PUBLIC REMARKS 

None.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Trustee Pedersen moved to adjourn.  (Trustee Pool seconded.)  The motion carried; all ayes.  The 

meeting adjourned at 7:09 p.m.   



7/10/2019 TYRONE TOWNSHIP TREASURER'S REPORT

JMM      Period ending June, 2019

INVESTMENTS Int MICHIGAN CLASS Int Rate FLG PEG CD Int Grand Totals Each

TOWNSHIP FUNDS Interest Ckg ICS Rate Monthly AVG. matures 8/13/19 rate Fund

General  101 $1,840,210.60 583,425.03$         2.29% 2,423,635.63$               

Tech Fund   141 $66,426.85 5,000.00$             2.29% $71,426.85

Building & Site   145 $12,227.89 365,000.00$         2.29% $377,227.89

Parks/Recreation   208 $5,934.23 0.40% $5,934.23

Liquor Control   212 $0.00 0.40% $0.00

Road   245 $13,592.74 419,224.80$         2.29% $257,432.04 2.50% 690,249.58$                  

Revolving   246 $130,842.77 -$                      2.29% $189,111.63 2.50% 319,954.40$                  

Right of Way   260 $17,423.09 0.40% $17,423.09

Peg 274 $120,333.10 185,650.73$  2.29% $305,983.83

Lk Tyrone Grant 281 $0.00 0.40% $0.00

Special Assessments

Jayne Hill Lts   218 $3,102.59 0.40% $3,102.59

Walnut Shores Lts  219 $755.09 0.40% $755.09

Shannon Glen Rubbish 225 $4,694.72 $4,694.72

Jayne Hill Rubbish Removal 226 $23,453.09 0.40% $23,453.09

Apple Orchard Rubbish Removal 227 $3,478.34 $3,478.34

Silver Lake Rubbish Removal 228 $12,389.98 $12,389.98

Parkin Lane Snow 231 $16,932.64 0.40% $16,932.64

Great Oaks Dr 232 $6,275.97 0.40% $6,275.97

Account Totals $2,278,073.69 1,372,649.83$       $446,543.67  185,650.73$  4,282,917.92$               

Health Flex Spending 101 The State Bank Health Flex Total

FSA Account ($10K Loan to Open) 7,911.65$             0.00% 7,911.65$                      

7,911.65$                      

Public Safety- 205 Public Safety Total

Public Safety  205 - State Bank checking 479,267.58$         0.40% 479,267.58$                  

Public Safety 205- State Bank Savings 6,365.60$             6,365.60$                      

Public Safety 205 - Level One Bank 203,907.64$         0.40% 203,907.64$                  

Public Safety ICS- 205 State Bank 753,873.63$         2.29% 753,873.63$                  

  1,443,414.45$               

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP SEWER 2003- 392 Flagstar  Tyrone Sewer 03 Total

Debt Service   392 Flagstar Bank 402,605.52$         0.6% 402,605.52$                  

Flagstar CDARS 2003 (matures 10/25/2019)(9361) 528,664.99$         2.00% 528,664.99$                  

Flagstar CD 2003 (matures 3/31/2020)(3879) 1,000,000.00$      2.55% 1,000,000.00$               

Flagstar CDARS 2003 Fund Martures 6/18/20)(1875) 458,975.22$         2.00% 458,975.22$                  

2,390,245.73$               

Road Improvements- Flagstar  Road Improvement Total

Parkin Lane Rd 2010    (396) 18,410.20$           0.70% 18,410.20$                    

Lake Shannon 2018 (399) 248,184.11$         0.70% 248,184.11$                  

Laurel springs (400) 50,323.27$           0.70% 50,323.27$                    

Irish Hills (401) 33,374.07$           33,374.07$                    

CIBC- Parkin Lane CD(matures 5/12/20) 124,293.91$         2.50% 124,293.91$                  

474,585.56$                  

SEWER O&M CHECKING ACCT- 590   Flagstar Sewer O&M Total

Sewer Operation and Maintenance CK  (5710) 201,562.73$         0.70% 201,562.73$                  

Sewer Operation and Maintenance SV   (4865) 81,645.87$           1.39% 81,645.87$                    

CIBC- O&M CD(matures 5/8/20)(6337) 158,175.68$         2.50% 158,175.68$                  

O&M CDARS (matures 8/15/2020)(9878) 138,920.35$         0.75% 138,920.35$                  

O&M CDARS (matures 8/13/2020)(4710) 138,874.68$         2.50% 138,874.68$                  

719,179.31$                  

TRUST & AGENCY- 701 Chase Trust & Agency Total

Township Trust and Agency 701 Savings 1,510.39$             0.18% 1,510.39$                      

Township Trust and Agency 701 Checking 7,015.82$             0.00% 7,015.82$                      

 8,526.21$                      

5,043,862.91$               

Total Township  Monies 9,326,780.83$               



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 1/2Page: 07/11/2019 01:36 PM
User: MHUSTED
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 06/28/2019 - 07/11/2019

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 001 STATE BANK COMMON ACCOUNT

80.00 STORAGE UNIT AUGUST 2019AMERIGUARD SELF MINI STORAGE2193100107/11/2019
96.62 SUPERVISOR CELL 6.28.19 TO 7.27.19AT&T MOBILITY2193200107/11/2019
329.91 TWP HALL PHONE & INTERNET JULY 2019CHARTER BUSINESS COMMUNICATIONS2193300107/11/2019

311.08 TWP HALL ELECTRIC 5.28.19 TO 6.25.19CONSUMERS ENERGY2193400107/11/2019
315.96 STREET LIGHTING JUNE 2019
223.25 8420 RUNYAN LAKE ELECTRIC 5.29.19 TO 6.2

850.29 

44.00 HALL PEST CONTROL 6.27.19GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS, INC2193500107/11/2019
1,963.50 LEGAL-BOARD, ZONING ADMINISTRATIONHARRIS & LITERSKI ATTORNEYS AT2193600107/11/2019

208.80 REFLECTIVE ADDRESS SIGNSINTERSTATE SIGN PRODUCTS INC.2193700107/11/2019
47.15 DOCUMENT SHREDDING 6.20.19IRON MOUNTAIN INC2193800107/11/2019

1,337.10 SUMMER TAX BILLS AND NEWSLETTERSKCI2193900107/11/2019
2,657.18 LINDEN PEG DISTRIBUTIONLINDEN COMMUNITY SCHOOLS2194000107/11/2019

701.50 DOG LICENSES 1872-1901 SOLD JUNE 2019LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER2194100107/11/2019
880.00 RUNYAN LK RD PROPERTY HVAC REVIEWMACKLIN MECHANICAL COMPANY2194200107/11/2019
337.50 CEMETERY SOFTWARE ANNUAL SUPPORT 8.1.19 PONTEM SOFTWARE 2194300107/11/2019

1,149.20 SILVER LAKE EST. GARBAGE JULY 2019REPUBLIC SERVICES#2372194400107/11/2019
1,588.73 JAYNE HILL GARBAGE JULY 2019

354.51 SHANNON GLEN GARBAGE JULY 2019

3,092.44 

124.21 COPIER LEASE 6.28.19 TO 7.27.19RICOH USA, INC.2194500107/11/2019
107.40 2931 B&W, 1585 COLOR COPIESRICOH USA, INC.2194600107/11/2019
660.00 OFFICE CLEANING JUNE 2019RITTER'S CLEANING SERVICE2194700107/11/2019
155.30 OFFICE SUPPLIESSTAPLES  ADVANTAGE2194800107/11/2019

1,500.00 MOVE CASH TO CORRECT BANKTYRONE TOWNSHIP2194900107/11/2019
485.10 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICESVIEW NEWSPAPER GROUP2195000107/11/2019
387.23 TWP HALL PROPANE 298.1 GAL.WEBSTER & GARNER, INC2195100107/11/2019

001 TOTALS:

16,045.23 Total of 21 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
16,045.23 Total of 21 Checks:

Bank 022 STATE BANK - PUBLIC SAFETY checking

20.00 COURT FEES BELL FIRE RUNARBOR PROFESSIONAL SOLUTIONS114102207/11/2019
18,447.00 13 FIRE RUNS APRIL-JUNE 2019CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF FENTON114202207/11/2019
2,838.00 2 FIRE RUNS JUNE 1-15HARTLAND AREA FIRE DEPARTMENT114302207/11/2019

34,459.34 SHERIFF SERVICES APRIL - JUNE 2019LIVINGSTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT114402207/11/2019
50.00 PEOPLE SEARCH JUNE 2019TRANSUNION RISK DATA SOLUTIONS114502207/11/2019

17,528.00 13 FIRE RUNS JUNE 2019CITY OF FENTON114602207/11/2019

022 TOTALS:

73,342.34 Total of 6 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
73,342.34 Total of 6 Checks:

Bank 102 SEWER O&M CHECKING 590



CHECK REGISTER FOR TYRONE TOWNSHIP 2/2Page: 07/11/2019 01:36 PM
User: MHUSTED
DB: Tyrone

CHECK DATE FROM 06/28/2019 - 07/11/2019

AmountDescriptionVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

61,147.34 SEWER O&M 5.30.19 TO 6.27.19LIVINGSTON COUNTY DRAIN COMM.40110207/11/2019

102 TOTALS:

61,147.34 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
61,147.34 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank 108 TAX FUND FLAGSTAR 

1,058.77 TO MOVE INTEREST EARNED ON TAX ACCT BEFOTYRONE TOWNSHIP259510807/11/2019

108 TOTALS:

1,058.77 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,058.77 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank 112 FLAGSTAR CHECKING - SA ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

12,900.00 FINANCIAL CONSULTANT - LAUREL SPRINGSPFM FINANCIAL ADVISORS LLC102111207/11/2019
100.00 LAUREL SPRINGS SA BOND FILING FEES STATE OF MICHIGAN102211207/11/2019

1,080.00 REIMBURSE COMMON ACCOUNT FROM FLAGSTARTYRONE TOWNSHIP102311207/11/2019
1,212.75 PUBLIC HEARING NOTICESVIEW NEWSPAPER GROUP102411207/11/2019

112 TOTALS:

15,292.75 Total of 4 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
15,292.75 Total of 4 Checks:

Bank 203 TRUST & AGENCY 701 CKG

41.25 LEGAL-CIDER MILL CROSSINGSHARRIS & LITERSKI ATTORNEYS AT179320307/11/2019
121.00 LEGAL-BENTLEY SAND & GRAVEL
41.25 LEGAL-SANCTUARY TYRONE FOUR

203.50 

1,925.00 SPECIFIC MOBILE HOME TAX & SET JUNE 2019LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER179420307/11/2019
385.21 SPECIFIC MOBILE HOME TAX & INTEREST JUNETYRONE TOWNSHIP179520307/11/2019

203 TOTALS:

2,513.71 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
2,513.71 Total of 3 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

169,400.14 Total of 36 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
169,400.14 Total of 36 Checks:



NEW BUSINESS #1 





NEW BUSINESS #2 



 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #190703 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

LAUREL SPRINGS SUBDIVISION 

WASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING PROJECT DETAILS AND 

DIRECTING THE PREPARATION OF THE 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Township has determined to proceed with the 

establishment of a single waste hauler for the collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish 

within the Laurel Springs Subdivision in the Township as described in Exhibit A (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, prior to the first public hearing on the Project, the Board of Trustees of the 

Township received petitions requesting that the Board of Trustees of the Township proceed with 

the Project; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Township has tentatively determined to use 

special assessments to raise the funds to pay the costs of the Project, and: 

WHEREAS, the Township held a public hearing on the Project and the proposed Special 

Assessment District for the Project on July 6, 2019; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Board of Trustees of the Township approves the completion of the Project 

and approves the plans and cost estimates for the Project, which are on file with the Township 

Clerk and which are identified as “Plans and Cost Estimates for the Laurel Springs Subdivision 

Waste Removal Project.” 

2.  The Board of Trustees of the Township determines that the petitions for the 

Project submitted to the Board of Trustees were sufficient to satisfy the requirements under Act 

No. 188, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended for initiating an improvement project.   

3. The Board of Trustees of the Township determines that the Special Assessment 

District for the Project shall consist of the parcels identified in Exhibit B.  The term of the 

Special Assessment District shall be through March 31, 2030. 

4. The Township Supervisor is directed to prepare the Special Assessment Roll for 

the Special Assessment District identified in Exhibit B.  The Special Assessment Roll shall 

describe all the parcels of land to be assessed with the names of the respective record owners of 



 

Resolution #190703 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

 

each parcel, if known, and the total amount to be assessed against each parcel of land.  When the 

Township Supervisor completes the Special Assessment Roll, he shall affix his certificate to the 

roll, which certificate shall be substantially in the form of Exhibit C to this resolution. 

5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby 

rescinded. 

RESOLVED BY:   

SUPPORTED BY:   
 

VOTE:   
 

ADOPTION DATE:  July 16, 2019 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on July 16, 2019, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

__________________________________ 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

 



 

Exhibit A 

 

Resolution #190703 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

___________________________________________________ 

Exhibit A 

 

Description of the Project 

___________________________________________________ 

 

The project (the “Project”) will consist of the establishment of a single waste hauler for 

the collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish along the following streets in the Laurel 

Springs subdivision in Tyrone Township:  Dentonview Dr., Laurel Springs Blvd., Overlook Dr., 

and 12231 and 12245 White Lake Rd. 

.



 

Exhibit B,  Page 1 

 

Resolution #190703 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

___________________________________________________ 

Exhibit B 

 

Description of the Special Assessment District 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP 

LAUREL SPRINGS SUBDIVISIONWASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

The Tyrone Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project (2019) Special 

Assessment District (the “Special Assessment District”) has been formed to specially assess the 

properties benefited from the Project described in Exhibit A.  The proposed Special Assessment 

District is described as follows: All properties located in the Laurel Springs Subdivision in 

Tyrone Township.  The Special Assessment District includes the properties shown in the Special 

Assessment District on the map attached as Appendix I and includes the specific properties that 

are identified by the following permanent parcel numbers: 

4704-11-100-025 

4704-11-100-032 

4704-11-100-033 

4704-11-100-034 

4704-11-100-039 

4704-11-100-046 

4704-11-100-048 

4704-11-100-049 

4704-11-101-015 

4704-11-101-016 

4704-11-101-017 

4704-11-101-018 

4704-11-101-019 

4704-11-101-020 

4704-11-101-021 

4704-11-101-022 

4704-11-101-023 

4704-11-101-024 

4704-11-101-034 

4704-11-101-035 

4704-11-101-036 

4704-11-101-037 

4704-11-101-038 

4704-11-101-039 

4704-11-101-040 

4704-11-101-041 

4704-11-101-042 

4704-11-101-043 

4704-11-101-044 

4704-11-101-045 

4704-11-101-046 

4704-11-101-047 

4704-11-101-048 

4704-11-101-049 

4704-11-101-050 

 

 



 

 

APPENDEX I 

 

Resolution #190703 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

APPENDIX I 

Map of Special Assessment District 

 



 

 

Exhibit C 

 

Resolution #190703 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

__________________________________________________ 

Exhibit C 

 

Certificate 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

I, the undersigned, Supervisor of Tyrone Township, Livingston County, Michigan (the 

“Township”), acting pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by the Township Board of the 

Township on July 16, 2019 (the “Resolution”) certify that (1) the attached special assessment roll 

for the Tyrone Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project (2019) Special 

Assessment District, to which this Certificate is affixed, was made pursuant to the Resolution 

and (2) in making such roll, I have, according to my best judgment, conformed in all respects to 

the directions contained in the Resolution and the statutes of the State of Michigan, including Act 

No. 188, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended. 

 

Dated:  July 16, 2019             

      Mike Cunningham 

                                                                     Tyrone Township Supervisor 



NEW BUSINESS #3 



 

 

RESOLUTION #190704 

TYRONE TOWNSHIP, LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

 

LAUREL SPRINGS SUBDIVISION 

WASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) 

 
RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE FILING OF THE  

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL, SCHEDULING A HEARING, 

DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE OF STATUTORY NOTICES 

AND RATIFYING PREVIOUS ACTIONS 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Township has determined to proceed with the 

establishment of a single waste hauler for the collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish 

within the Laurel Springs Subdivision in the Township as described in Exhibit A (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Township has tentatively determined to use 

special assessments to raise the funds to pay the costs of the Project; 

WHEREAS, the Special Assessment District for the Project has been determined by the 

Board of Trustees of the Township;  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Township has directed the Township 

Supervisor to prepare the proposed Special Assessment Roll; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Supervisor has prepared the Special Assessment Roll entitled 

“Special Assessment Roll for the Tyrone Township Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal 

Project (2019)” (the “Proposed Roll”) and has filed the Proposed Roll with the Township Clerk; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Board of Trustees of the Township acknowledges that the Township 

Supervisor has filed the Proposed Roll with the Township Clerk. 

2. The Board of Trustees of the Township acknowledges that the Township 

Supervisor has certified that (a) the Proposed Roll was prepared in accordance with the direction 

of the Board of Trustees of the Township and (b) the Proposed Roll was prepared in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Michigan.  

3. In accordance with Act No. 188, Michigan Public Acts of 1954, as amended, and 

the laws of the State of Michigan, there shall be a public hearing on the Proposed Roll. 

4. The public hearing will be held on August 20, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Tyrone 

Township Offices, 10408 Center Road, Fenton, Michigan. 

 



 

Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

5. The Township Clerk is directed to mail, by first class mail, a notice of the public 

hearing to each owner of or party in interest in property to be assessed, whose name appears 

upon the last Township tax assessment records.  The last Township tax assessment records 

means the last assessment roll for ad valorem tax purposes which has been reviewed by the 

Township board of review, as supplemented by any subsequent changes in the names or 

addresses of such owners or parties listed thereon.  The notice to be mailed by the Township 

Clerk shall be similar to the notice attached as Exhibit B and shall be mailed by first class mail 

on or before July 30, 2019. 

6. The Township Clerk is directed to publish a notice of the public hearing in the 

Tri-County Times, a newspaper of general circulation within the Township.  The notice shall be 

published twice, once on or before August 4, 2019 and once on or before August 18, 2019.  The 

notice shall be in a form substantially similar to the notice attached as Exhibit B. 

7. All previous actions taken to date of the Board of Trustees of the Township and of 

the Township officials with respect to the Project are hereby ratified and approved. 

8. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby 

rescinded. 

RESOLVED BY:   

SUPPORTED BY:   
 

VOTE:  . 

 

ADOPTION DATE:  July 16, 2019 

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE CLERK 

 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Clerk of Tyrone Township, Livingston 

County, Michigan, hereby certifies that (1) the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a 

resolution adopted by the Township Board at a regular meeting, held on July 16, 2019, at which 

meeting a quorum was present and remained throughout, (2) the original thereof is on file in the 

records in my office, (3) the meeting was conducted, and public notice thereof was given, 

pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act (Act No. 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended) and (4) minutes of such meeting were kept and will be or have 

been made available as required thereby. 

 

__________________________________ 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

 

 



 

Exhibit A 

 

  Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

___________________________________________________ 

Exhibit A 

 

Description of the Project 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

The project (the “Project”) will consist of the establishment of a single waste hauler for 

the collection and disposal of garbage and rubbish along the following streets in the Laurel 

Springs subdivision in Tyrone Township:  Dentonview Dr., Laurel Springs Blvd., Overlook Dr., 

and 12231 and 12245 White Lake Rd. 



 

Exhibit B 

 

  Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

___________________________________________________ 

Exhibit B 

 

Form of Notice of Public Hearing Upon Special 

Assessment Roll for the Tyrone Township 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project (2019) 

Special Assessment District 

___________________________________________________ 

 



 

Exhibit B 

 

  Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

Tyrone Township 

Livingston County, Michigan 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING UPON SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE TYRONE TOWNSHIP  

LAUREL SPRINGS SUBDIVISION WASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: 

(1) The Township Board of Tyrone Township, Livingston County, Michigan (the 

“Township”) in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan, has determined to levy 

special assessments against lands in the TYRONE TOWNSHIP LAUREL SPRINGS 

SUBDIVISION WASTE REMOVAL PROJECT (2019) SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

(the “District”) that will be benefited by the establishment of a single waste hauler to collect and 

dispose of garbage and rubbish in the Township.  The District consists of the properties 

identified on the map below and is more specifically identified by the following property 

identification numbers: 

4704-11-100-025 

4704-11-100-032 

4704-11-100-033 

4704-11-100-034 

4704-11-100-039 

4704-11-100-046 

4704-11-100-048 

4704-11-100-049 

4704-11-101-015 

4704-11-101-016 

4704-11-101-017 

4704-11-101-018 

4704-11-101-019 

4704-11-101-020 

4704-11-101-021 

4704-11-101-022 

4704-11-101-023 

4704-11-101-024 

4704-11-101-034 

4704-11-101-035 

4704-11-101-036 

4704-11-101-037 

4704-11-101-038 

4704-11-101-039 

4704-11-101-040 

4704-11-101-041 

4704-11-101-042 

4704-11-101-043 

4704-11-101-044 

4704-11-101-045 

4704-11-101-046 

4704-11-101-047 

4704-11-101-048 

4704-11-101-049 

4704-11-101-050 

 

(2) The proposed special assessment roll for the District (the “Roll”) has been 

prepared and is now on file in the office of the Township Clerk and is available at such office for 

public examination during the hours the Township Office is regularly open to the public for 

business. 

(3) The Township Board will conduct a public hearing beginning at 7:00 p.m., local 

time, on August 20, 2019, at the Tyrone Township Offices, 10408 Center Road, Fenton, 

Michigan, to explain and answer questions pertaining to the Roll and to hear objections to the 



 

Exhibit B 

 

  Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

Roll.  Any person objecting to the Roll must file his or her objections before the close of the 

public hearing or within such additional time (if any) as the Township Board may grant. 

(4) The owner or other person having an interest in property that is specially assessed 

is entitled to file a written appeal with the Michigan Tax Tribunal within 30 days after 

confirmation of the Roll.  However, appearance and protest at the public hearing are required by 

law in order to appeal the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  An owner or other 

party in interest or his or her agent may (i) appear in person at the hearing to protest the 

assessment or (ii) file an appearance and protest by letter before the close of the hearing.  The 

Township Board will maintain a record of the persons who appear and protest at the hearing.  If 

the hearing is terminated or adjourned for the day before a party is provided the opportunity to be 

heard, a party whose appearance was so recorded shall be considered to have protested the 

special assessment in person. 

This notice is given by order of the Tyrone Township Board. 

Dated: July 16, 2019      Marcella Husted 

                  Tyrone Township Clerk



 

Exhibit B 

 

Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

 

 

 

Map of Special Assessment District 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit C 

 

Resolution #190704 

Laurel Springs Subdivision Waste Removal Project 

 

 

___________________________________________________ 

Exhibit C 

 

Affidavit of Mailing 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN         ) 

                                                 ) ss. 

COUNTY OF LIVINGSTON ) 

MARCELLA HUSTED, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that she personally 

prepared for mailing, and did on July 30, 2019, send by first class mail, the notice of hearing, a 

true copy of which is attached hereto, to each record owner of or party in interest in all property 

to be assessed for the improvement described therein, is shown on the last local tax assessment 

records of the Township of Tyrone; that she personally compared the address on each envelope 

against the list of property owners as shown on the current tax assessment rolls of the Township; 

that each envelope contained therein such notice and was securely sealed with postage fully 

prepaid for first class mail delivery and plainly addressed; and that she personally placed all of 

such envelopes in a United States Post Office receptacle on the above date. 

 

                                                 

Marcella Husted 

Tyrone Township Clerk 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 30th day of  July, 2019. 

                                                          

 

Notary Public, Genesee  County, MI 

Acting in the County of Livingston 

My commission expires ______________ 

  

 

 



NEW BUSINESS #4 













NEW BUSINESS #5 













NEW BUSINESS #6 

























NEW BUSINESS #7 



 

Tyrone Township Planning Commission 
10408 Center Road     Fenton, MI  48430-9439    (810) 629-8631 

Mark Meisel, Chairman     Kurt Schulze, Vice Chair     David Wardin, Secretary     Richard Erickson     Perry Green     Al Pool     Bill Wood 

 

July 8, 2019 
 
Township Board 
Tyrone Township 
10408 Center Road 
Fenton, MI  48430-9439 
 
 
 
Subject:  Agenda Request – Master Plan Resolution 
 
 
Dear Township Board Members: 
 
During our meeting on June 11, 2019, Dave Wardin moved to recommend adoption of the five year Resolution of 
Review and Ratification of our 2012 Master Plan.  Al Pool supported the motion.  The motion carried by unanimous 
voice vote. 

 
The Planning Commission recently completed its 5-year review of the 2012 adopted Tyrone Township Master Plan.  
During this review the Planning Commission and McKenna found no substantial inconsistencies or changes required to 
the 2012 Master Plan.  We did, however, note some outdated information regarding several businesses or amenities 
available to residents.   
 
The Planning Commission recommends the Township Board also adopt the five year Resolution of Review and 
Ratification of our 2012 Master Plan to complete our statutory Master Plan review process. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tyrone Township Planning Commission 

Mark Meisel 
Chairman 



RESOLUTION OF REVIEW AND RATIFICATION 
 MASTER PLAN (ADOPTED NOVEMBER 2012) 
  
 TYRONE TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
 LIVINGSTON COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (Public Act 33 of 2008), as amended, provides for a 
planning commission to prepare and adopt a Master Plan for physical development of the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Tyrone Township Planning Commission (the “Planning Commission”) has prepared such 
a Master Plan for the Township’s physical development in compliance with the Michigan Planning Enabling 
Act, including relevant charts, maps and text, through a process that included substantial public participation, 
culminating in the adoption of a master plan for the Township in November 2012; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act also provides, in Section 45, for a planning commission 
to review a communities master plan at least every five years and determine whether it should be amended or 
a new plan should be adopted; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission observes that the demographics of the Township are very stable, 
as evidenced by data recently collected and published by Livingston County as part of its adoption of a master 
plan for the County in 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has undertaken a detailed review of the Township’s Master Plan, 
as adopted in November 2012 (the “Tyrone Township Master Plan”), during a work session held on May 22, 
2019, and has found that the content of the plan still accurately reflects the character and policy of the 
Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, through its review, the Planning Commission noted the following, non-substantive items 
that should be updated when a new master plan is adopted in the future: 
 

1. On Page 8, the reference to the manner in which the Township’s open space preservation policies have 
been implemented is outdated, referring to an earlier approach that the larger lot areas and widths 
now utilized. 

2. On Page 9, the photo shows a water tower that no longer exists. 
3. On Page 10, the text refers to Kmart, which has since closed. 
4. On Page 11, the text refers to Walmart, which has since closed. 
5. On the title page following Page 22, the photo shows the aforementioned water tower that no longer 

exists and does not show the current configuration of the store. 
6. On Page 46, the reference to Fenton Sand & Gravel should be updated to include its current name and 

should refer to it being on Denton Hill Road; the paintball facility referenced has closed. 
7. On Page 47, Woody’s should also be referred to as a gas station. 
8. On Page 67, capacity information should be updated. 
9. On Page 72, it should be noted that the Loose Center has been rebuilt after the fire. 
10. On Page 76, the aforementioned paintball facility should be deleted and reference should be made to 

the following additional amenities: 
a. Sunken Gardens; 
b. Truck Road walking trail; 
c. Shiawassee Watershed activities; 
d. Lyle and Mary Rizor Nature Sanctuary. 



11. On Page 91, the manner of implementing the open space policy should be updated, as mentioned 
above. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Planning Commission hereby ratifies the Tyrone Township Master Plan and 
recommends that the Township Board do the same. 
 
 
 
Motion by David Wardin to adopt the resolution, supported by Al Pool. 
 
AYES: Meisel, Wardin, Schulze, Erickson, Pool, Wood. 
 
NAYS:  None. 
 
ABSENT: Green. 
 
Resolution Declared adopted by majority vote. 
 


